
 
 

 
 
 
2 October 2020 
 
 
To: Councillors Brookes, Hutton and D Scott  

 
The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

LICENSING PANEL 
 

Monday, 12 October 2020 at 2.00 pm 
in Via Zoom Meeting 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 To appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 
 

2  DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:- 
 
(1) the type of interest concerned 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and 
 
(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously 
considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject 
to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting. 
 
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 
 
(Members are asked to also pay particular attention to the guidance sheet on interests 
supplied with the agenda). 

 
3  PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING   

 
 The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal 

maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing. 
 

Public Document Pack



A. Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in 
the Meeting Room.  
B. Items 2, 3, 4(a) and 4(c) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public. 
C.         The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 
considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and 
any person assisting or representing a party) 

 
4  APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE - MERKUR SLOTS 40 ABINGDON 

STREET, BLACKPOOL, FY1 1DA  (Pages 1 - 48) 
 

 To consider an application for a new bingo premises licence for Merkur Slots, 40 
Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA. 

 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact John Greenbank, Senior Democratic 
Governance Adviser, Tel: 01253 477229, e-mail john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


 

Report to: LICENSING PANEL 
 

Relevant Officer: Sarah Chadwick, Licensing Officer 

Date of Meeting : 12 October 2020 

 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE – MERKUR 
SLOTS 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 
 
 

To consider an application for a new Bingo Premises Licence under the Gambling Act 2005 
for Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA. 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 

Recommendation(s): 
 
The panel is requested to determine the application. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

This application must be determined by a panel. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 
None, once an application is submitted and representations received it must be 
considered by the Licensing Panel. 

 
4.0 Background Information 

 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 

On 24 July 2020 the Licensing Service received an application from Cashino Gaming Ltd for 
a new Bingo Premises Licence for Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool. 
 
The application requests the Licence be granted for the default hours for a bingo 
premises, i.e. 09.00 to midnight, for permitted gaming (bingo). There are no 
restrictions on the hours in which gaming machines may be made available for use, 
however the applicant has volunteered a condition proposing that the premises shall 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

close at 01.00 each day. 
 
In the application Cashino Gaming Limited are described as operating “a national 
estate of licensed bingo premises which include the provision of bingo tablets and 
Bingo Plus and Bingo Express terminals. Substantive facilities for non-remote bingo 
will be made available in accordance with legislative provisions.” 
 
Two representations have been received from interested parties who operate 
businesses in the vicinity of the proposed premises who have expressed concerns 
about the impact of the proposed premises on vulnerable persons in the town 
centre. 
 

 
Local policy considerations 
 

As the representations raise concerns in relation to vulnerable persons, section 4.8 – 
General standards for all gambling premises - is relevant: 
 
“High standards are expected from operators of gambling premises within the 
Borough to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing authority 
will place a high priority on social responsibility. In exercising its statutory powers, 
the authority will have due regard, where relevant, to the need to: 

 Prevent gambling related problems in individuals and groups at risk of gambling 
addiction; 

 Promote informed and balanced attitudes, behaviours and policies towards 
gambling and gamblers by both individuals and by communities; and  

 Protect vulnerable groups from gambling related harm. 
The licensing authority will consider, in relation to any particular premises, whether 
any special considerations apply to the protection of vulnerable persons. Such 
considerations need to be balanced by the authority’s objective to aim to permit the 
use of premises for gambling.” 
 
It should be noted that complaints about nuisance cannot be resolved through the 
Gambling Act 2005. 
 
National policy considerations 
 
5.18 Licensing authorities need to consider, in relation to particular premises, 
whether any special considerations apply in relation to the protection of vulnerable 
persons. This could be a local risk that is reflected in the licensing authority’s policy 
statement. Any such considerations need to be balanced against the authority’s 
objective to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling. 
 
5.31 Licensing authorities should not turn down applications for Premises Licences 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

where relevant objections can be dealt with through the use of conditions. In 
determining applications for Premises Licences and permits, a licensing authority may 
request as much information as it requires to satisfy itself that all the requirements 
set out at s.153 of the Act are met. 
 
 
Observations 
 
A similar application for this premises from the same operator was submitted to the 
Licensing Authority on 17 March 2020. Representations to that application were 
received from Abingdon Barbecue and the Bread Basket (who have also objected to 
this revised application and operate businesses in the vicinity of the premises.) That 
application was considered by a panel of the licensing committee on 26 June 2020 
and was rejected. Due to the short time that has elapsed since this hearing a copy of 
the decision notice outlining the reasons for the rejection is attached, for 
information. 
 
On this revised application the applicant has proposed a number of additional 
conditions to be attached to the Licence should it be granted. These are detailed in 
part 5 of the application form which is attached as an appendix to this report. 
 
There are also a number of mandatory and default conditions which attach to a bingo 
Premises Licence: 
 
Mandatory Conditions: 
 

1. A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to play 
bingo on the premises shall be displayed in a prominent place at every entrance 
to the premises.  

2. No customer shall be able to enter the premises directly from any other premises 
in respect of which one of the following permissions has effect – 
(a) a Casino Premises Licence; 
(b) an Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence; 
(c) a Betting Premises Licence other than a Track Premises Licence; and 

3. (1) This paragraph shall apply where children or young persons or both are 
permitted by the Licence Holder to enter the premises, and Category B or C 
gaming machines are made available for use on the premises.  
(2) Any area of the premises to which category B and C gaming machines are 
located – 
a. shall be separated from the rest of the premises by a physical barrier which is 
effective to prevent access other than by an entrance designed for the purpose; 
b. shall be supervised at all times to ensure children or young persons or both do 
not enter the area; and 

Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. shall be arranged in such a way that ensures all parts of the area can be 
observed by the persons mentioned in sub-paragraph (3). 
(3) The reference to supervision in this paragraph means supervision by – 
a. one or more persons whose responsibilities include ensuring children or young 
persons or both do not enter the area; or 
b. closed circuit television which is monitored by one or more persons whose 
responsibilities include ensuring that children or young persons or both do not 
enter the area. 
(4) A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to enter 
the area shall be displayed in a prominent place at the entrance to any area of 
the premises in which Category B or C gaming machines are made available for 
use.  

4. (1) In the case of a charge for admission to the premises, a notice of that charge 
shall be displayed in a prominent place at the principal entrance to the premises. 
(2) In the case of any other charges in respect of gaming, a notice setting out the 
information in sub-paragraph (3) shall be displayed at the main point where 
payment for the charge is to be made.  
(3) The notice in sub-paragraph (2) shall include the following information – 
a. the cost (in money) of each game card (or set of game cards) payable by an 
individual in respect of a game of bingo; 
b. in respect of each game card (or set of game cards) referred to in paragraph (a) 
the amount that will be charged by way of a participation fee for entitlement to 
participate in that game; and 
c. a statement to the effect that all or part of the participation fee may be waived 
at the discretion of the person charging it. 
(4) The notice may be displayed in electronic form. 
(5) A reference in this paragraph to a charge in respect of gaming does not 
include an amount paid for an opportunity to win one or more prizes in gaming to 
which section 288 of the 2005 Act (meaning of “prize gaming”) applies.  

5. (1) The rules of each type of game that is available to be played the premises 
other than games played on gaming machines shall be made available to 
customers within the premises. 
(2) The condition in sub-paragraph (1) may be satisfied by – 
a. displaying a sign setting out the rules, 
b. making available leaflets or other written material containing the rules, or 
c. running an audio-visual guide to the rules prior to any bingo game being 
commenced. 

6. Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling in order to do so. 

 
Default Conditions: 
 
1. Subject to paragraph 2, no facilities for gambling shall be provided on the 

premises between the hours of midnight and 9am.  

Page 4



2. The condition in paragraph 1 shall not apply to making gaming machines available 
for use. 

 
4.8 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

4.9 List of Appendices:  
  

Appendix 4(a) -Application 
Appendix 4(b) - Representation from B Chambers 
Appendix 4(c) - Representation from T Hallam 
Appendix 4(d) - Decision notice from previous application hearing on 26 
June 2020 

 

 

5.0 Legal considerations: 
 

5.1 
 

Please see local and national policy in the background information. 
 

6.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 
 

7.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 
 

8.0 Financial considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 
 
 

  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (a)

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



P
age 40



Appendix 4 (b)

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (c)

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NOTICE OF REJECTION OF AN APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE 

This notice is issued in accordance with regulations made under section 165(2) of the Gambling Act 
2005. 

 

Notice issued by   Blackpool Borough Council 
    PO Box 11 
    Town Hall 
    Blackpool 
    FY1 1NB 
 

An application for a premises licence of the following type Bingo 

Made by    Cashino Gaming Limited 

Of the following address Seebeck House 
    1A Seebeck Place 
    Milton Keynes 
    MK5 8FR 
 

The number of whose operating licence is 000-003266-N-103444 

Is rejected 

 

The premises to which this notice applies are 

    Merkur Slots 
    40 Abingdon Street 
    Blackpool Council    
    FY1 1DA 
 
This application has been rejected for the following reasons: 
 
This application was considered by a panel of the licensing committee at a hearing on 26 June 2020. 
The applicant was represented by Mr Bradley and the Objectors were represented by Mr Whur. Both 
parties submitted extensive written representations in advance of the hearing all of which were 
taken into consideration when determining this application, for the sake of brevity they will not be 
repeated here. 
 
In oral submissions, Mr Bradley explained to the panel that the premises had previously been 
licenced as a betting office. The applicant was a recognised responsible operator who had 73 similar 
small high street premises. None of their licences had ever been the subject of review. The proposal 
was to operate a mixed use premises where bingo would be offered by way of Bingo express and via 

Appendix 4 (d)

Page 45



a tablet and gaming machines would also be available for use. There would be 20 hand held tablets 
for bingo, 13 B3 machines, 21 Category C machines and 4 tri-max terminals. The panel were told that 
bingo was a ‘softer’ type of gambling than betting because there was a different customer profile 
and spend. Mr Bradley added that the local authority were in the best position to know the local 
area. A local area risk assessment had been prepared by the applicant but they conceded that no 
operation was without risk but any risk could be mitigated by having the correct policies and 
procedures in place. All venues were proactively managed and any emerging risks would be dealt 
with when they came to light. The premises would be adult only and Challenge 25 would be 
operated as standard. The premises was fully fitted with CCTV ad there would be a maglock system 
on the door. Dealing with the question of hours, there was no application to vary the default hours 
applied to bingo licences. They would however like to operate the gaming machines to a later hour 
should there be customer demand for this. It was stressed that there was no intention to operate 
the premises 24 hours a day. A condition permitting the use of gaming machines until 1 a.m. or 2 
a.m. was suggested. As far as the single staffing of the premises was concerned there would be no 
pre-planned single staffing after 8 p.m. which could be attached to the licence as a condition. 
 
Mr Whur, on behalf of the objectors referred to what he considered to be deficiencies in the local 
area risk assessment. He told the panel that this appeared to be a tick box exercise containing 
standard documentation and nothing about local risks even though it did identify that the locality in 
which the premises is situated is an area of high deprivation with sexual health and homeless 
services in the vicinity. The panel were asked to compare what they had been told by the applicant 
with the job adverts which gave an indication that the business intended to operate seven nights a 
week and that applicants had to be prepared to work on their own. Mr Whur also referred to the 
planning application made by the applicant being for an AGC not a bingo premises. He told the panel 
that the application was just not good enough because it was not clear when the premises would be 
opened and when it would be single manned. Continuing with the issue of single manning, Mr Whur 
also expressed concerns about the layout of the premises there being no apparent staff facilities 
with staff needing to share one single unisex toilet with the customers. The panel were also asked to 
consider primary activity. The premises would have 13 B3 machines with a £500 pay out. Looking at 
the number of gaming machines compared to the number of bingo machines this operation would 
be very much machine led rather than bingo led. 
 
When determining this application the panel reminded themselves of the provisions of section 153 
Gambling Act 2005 that they should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the 
authority think it: 

• In accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24; 
• In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission under section 

25; 
• Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
• In accordance with the Council’s statement of policy 

 
Mr Whur, in his address made great play of the fact that the applicant had asked the authority to 
grant the application without a hearing under section 162(3) of the Act, describing it as an attempt 
to take away the discretion and decision making role of the local authority. The panel did not believe 
that the applicant could be criticised for seeking to have the application disposed of in this manner, 
officers considered the content of the request and quite properly determined that the hearing 
should proceed. The fact that the applicant had made this request was, in the panel’s opinion, 
irrelevant and played no part in their decision. 
 
Whilst the panel did agree with the applicant that it was useful to have some form of standard 
template for a local area risk assessment, they did feel that it was not sufficient to address the 

Page 46



identified risks of being one of most deprived areas in the Country with nearby services for the 
vulnerable. The panel were of the opinion that the risk assessment they had been provided with was 
generic and had not sufficiently taken account of the local conditions, for example there was no 
indication of measures that would be put in place to protect customers and staff when the crime 
level in the area is 54% above average. The panel did not believe that the location was suitable for 
this type of late night operation. Although conditions have been offered, albeit at the last minute, 
the panel are not satisfied that the granting of this application would be reasonably consistent with 
the licensing objectives. 
 
 
An appeal may be brought against the rejection of this application by the applicant. An appeal must 
be instituted: 

• In the Magistrates’ Court for a local justice area in which the premises are wholly or partly 
situated; 

• By notice of appeal given to the designated officer; 
• Within 21 days beginning with the date of receipt of this notice of rejection. 

 
 
Sharon Davies 
29.06.20. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE - MERKUR SLOTS 40 ABINGDON STREET, BLACKPOOL, FY1 1DA
	Appendix 4a - Application
	Merkur Slots app
	Merkur Slots plan

	Appendix 4b - Public Objection B Chambers 12.08.20
	Appendix 4c - Public Objection Tony Hallam 03.08.20
	Appendix 4d - Decision Notice 26.06.20




